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Harris County Disaster Recovery 

Manufactured Home Subdivision Development (MHSD) Program  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) – as of 04/28/2021 

RFA No. 20/1124 

    

Question: Who will provide the land to construct?  

Response: The applicant/developer must provide the land to construct. The land acquisition can 
be included in your funding proposal as an eligible cost. Harris County is not providing the land. 
Your proposals should include the address that you plan to develop your mobile home park for 
our Planning department to determine whether or not it’s within the Harris County Service Area. 
Applicants may contact HCCSD to request verification that a site is within the applicable service 
area. Funds for acquisition can be requested, but Harris County CSD will not advise on what land 
to use or exactly where to build.  
 
Question: In Section 1.2.3 of the RFA itself says Harris County is “seeking projects that can start 
development in the first quarter of 2021.”  However, in the application materials, Section C on 
page 3, it says under contract term that “(T)he anticipated Contract Term under this RFA is for 
September 1, 2021 with a maximum of two (2) years.”  Please clarify when Harris County 
anticipates work to begin under this contract. 
 
Response: Projects must by ready to begin development by the contract term start date, which 
is estimated to be September 1, 2021. If proposals are submitted that are in a greater state of 
readiness to proceed then it is possible a project could begin as early as the first quarter of 2021, 
but it is anticipated that the more likely scenario is contracts would not start until closer to the 
September 1, 2021 date.  
 
Question: In the RFA under “Harris County Affordable Housing Standards” it makes reference to 
each housing unit being affixed to a permanent foundation when placed on site.  Per TDHCA 
regulations mobile homes need to be secured by straps to the ground.  Does this suffice as a 
“permanent foundation”? 
 
Response: Yes, manufactured housing units should be affixed according to applicable state and 
local regulations.  
 
Question: Please clarify that if the developer provides units on pad sites they are to be rented 
(not sold) to clients.  
 



Response: Applicants/developers can submit proposals for a rental development using either 
pad sites to be rented with a unit provided by the renter or lots/sites to be sold to interested 
households.  
 
Question: Based on the materials offered by Harris County, there is no indication if a proposed 
project requires any matching funds. Please confirm that this is not a matching grant program. 

Response: Matching funds are not a requirement of this RFA, however a priority will be given for 
those projects that provide matching or leverage funding.  

Question: If Matching Funds are required, can the purchase of land be utilized as the source for 
matching funds? 

Response: The RFA does not require matching funds, but land could be a source of 
leverage/match for the requested amount. As mentioned above, priority will be given for those 
projects that provide matching or leverage funding. 

Question: If the purchase of land is utilizing FEMA buyout funds with the county as the pass-
through, can those FEMA buyout funds be used for matching funding purposes?  

Response: Funds from a buyout program operated by Harris County or State of Texas may be 
used for the purchase of land (or for construction) and counted as leverage as part of the total 
project costs. This RFA does not have a match requirement, however, as mentioned above, 
priority will be given for those projects that provide matching or leverage funding. 

 

Question: We are concerned that the permitting process, which based on the project timeline 
identified in the RFA would commence on September 1st, 2021 with the start of project 
construction of January 1st, 2022, would take more than four months. If Harris County is not able 
to process the requisite permits within a 4-month time period, please confirm that the period of 
performance that would be state in a grant agreement provides remedies for an amendment to 
have the period of performance reviewed and extended? 

Response: The timeline in the RFA is an estimated timeline and could be adjusted based on issues 
faced by applications selected for funding.  

Question: If weather or other Act of God occurrences also occur during the anticipated period of 
performance between January 1st, 2022 and June 30th, 2023, then please confirm that Harris 
County would place within a grant agreement a remedy for an amendment to have the period of 
performance reviewed and extended. 

Response: The timeline in the RFA is an estimated timeline and could be adjusted based on issues 



faced by applications selected for funding, including “weather or other Act of God occurrences”. 

Question: Under Attachment C, please confirm that the applicant will be checking under the 
Certification for Lobbying, and under Section 1 – answer B “grant”. 

Response: The applicant should select “grant” as there is the possibility the RFA will utilize federal 
grant funds.  

Question: How much of a Grant will cover the development of a new community? 

Response: Harris County does not state how much of the request can be used for the 
development of a new community. Applications may request up to 100% Harris County funding 
for new developments, which may include land acquisition, engineering, infrastructure, and 
construction.  

Question: Do MHSD have resources on developers, architects, etc. who’ve done this size of work 
previously, that we can contact? If so, who? 

Response: Harris County does not provide resources for applicants regarding developers, 
architects, etc. who have done similar work previously. Development, architect, engineering and 
other resources are the applicant’s responsibility to contact and utilize. Applicants can contact 
industry associations such as the Texas Manufactured Housing Association 
(https://www.texasmha.com/) for guidance.  

Question: Does the county have properties available for the new development in the same 
proximities of the buyout/relocations, but are outside of the 100-year flood plain for 
purchase/lease?  

Response: The county does not have properties for purchase or lease available for this RFA. The 
applicant/developer must provide the land to construct. The land acquisition can be included in 
your funding proposal as an eligible cost. Harris County is not providing the land. 

Question: Will the county have resources/ grants in funding for sewer lines, septic tanks, water 
well, holding tank, and main infrastructure utilizes for the new property, if it’s not present? 

Response: Applicants can include required infrastructure, including necessary water and sewer 
elements, for the proposed development as part of this application. These are eligible costs. 

Question: Will existing tenants/infrastructure and owner will continue to reside in the existing 
property until the new community is done being built? 

Response: If a developer is a part of the Harris County Post Disaster Relocation and Buyout 
Program, that program will work with developers to create a parallel timeline for development 



of new park and relocation of buyout park.  

Question: Will we be able to rebuild the community as a religious community, similar to the one 
we have now? 

Response: Housing developed with Harris County funds cannot be restricted to any religion or 
require participation/belief in religious services or practices as a requirement of living within the 
proposed development.  

Question: Will we be able to build a church, community center, recreational park surrounding a 
shrine of a religious statue? 

Response: Harris County under this RFA for funding are restricted to acquisition and construction 
of the proposed new manufactured home subdivision and associated amenities, including parks. 
If the proposing developers are a part of the Harris County Post Disaster Relocation and Buyout 
Program, any relocation of businesses such as churches with associated religious structures will 
be relocated under that Program and not under this RFA. Please talk with your assigned Harris 
County Post Disaster Relocation and Buyout Program Relocation Specialist by emailing 
rebuildharris@csd.hctx.net.    

Question: Will the church/chapel, community center, and sanctuary shrine park (similar to 
existing mobile home park at 1003 Gulf bank rd that’s being bought out by the county) be 
included in the grant funding for the new mobile home park? 

Response: Harris County funds are restricted to acquisition and construction of the proposed 
manufactured home subdivision and associated amenities, including parks. The construction of 
a church, community center or recreational park surrounding a shrine of a religious statue are 
not eligible. If proposing developers are a part of the Harris County Post Disaster Relocation and 
Buyout Program, any relocation of businesses such as churches with associated religious 
structures will be relocated under that Program and not under this RFA. Please talk with your 
assigned Harris County Post Disaster Relocation and Buyout Program Relocation Specialist by 
emailing rebuildharris@csd.hctx.net.    

Question: Will we still have control, rights of ownership, of the property after the development 
is done? 

Response: Applicants/developer will have ownership of the development. Exact details are to be 
determined, but Harris County normally is a lien holder during the affordability/monitoring 
period and will include a Land Use Restriction Agreement (LURA) in the contract.  

Question: Can our development team meet with Harris County to obtain guidance in order to 
make decisions on a land tract for the grant program? We devoted time and money on this 



relocation issue but in order to comply with Harris County grant guidelines we need to meet with 
you and the parties devoted time in the research of this project. 

Response: As the Manufactured Housing Subdivision Development (MHSD) Program RFA is still 
open and until the recommendation process closes, our policy does not allow us to have general 
information meetings with individual applicants to discuss their project. Harris County does 
understand applicants may experience difficulties in finding a parcel and encourages them to 
submit applications that are as close to the stated criteria as possible. Should an applicant secure 
a parcel for their application and conditions change after submission of the RFA, such as loss of 
site control or conditions arise that make the site ineligible or infeasible to proceed, Harris County 
does allow submission of updated application material/details with justification for the changes 
and if necessary a revised site location. It is important that all applicants interested in the MHSD 
Program RFA submit an application by the deadline to allow evaluation of all potential proposals 
and their unique elements.   

Question: The grant application supplemental information indicates that the cost of the land 
"may" be included in the request for funds, however it is not clear in the supporting documents 
where this may be requested. This question needs to be answered in order to determine if the 
project investment economics will support a lot rental amount which is affordable to the 
residents, currently between $300 and $320 per month.  

Response: In the application budget, applicants could enter acquisition cost for land to be 
funded by the grant or as leverage to the grant. 

Question: The project by definition is a low-income development and consequently is also a 
low rental income venture.  Given the cost of the land, even with the potential grant, the 
investment return expectations are nominal at best. Is there any opportunity for property tax 
abatement from Harris County and/or other taxing entities?   

Response: Harris County CSD does not provide property tax abatements, please contact the 
Harris County Office of Economic Development 713-274-1400 for more information on the 
Harris County Tax Abatement Program and other incentive programs. 

 

 

 

 

 


